ANNEX – ANNUAL SECTORAL REPORT

Chapter 3: Services


	Chapter 3 (e) : Education Services

	Section
	Improvements Implemented Since Last IAP
	Current Entry Requirements
	Further Improvements Planned

	Operational Requirements


	International Education: The 2004 Budget International Education Package was fully implemented by June 2005.
On 19 April 2005, the Minister of Education announced a further series of initiatives to support international education development, including the extension of domestic status to international Doctor of Philosophy (PhD) students and their families and the extension of the Education Counselor programme to three new locations, bringing the current number of offshore counselors to seven.
 


	All sectors are subject to the measures outlined in the “General Approach to Trade in Services” section.  

 

The following Acts and associated regulations apply to all services sectors and establish parameters for general business practice in New Zealand.

 

Companies Act 1993

Employment Relations Act 2000

Parental Leave and Employment Protection Act 1987

Minimum Wage Act 1983

Wage Protection Act 1983

Holidays Act 2003

Equal Pay Act 1972

Human Rights Act 1993

Health and Safety in Employment Act 1992

Commerce Act 1986

Consumer Guarantees Act 1993

Fair Trading Act 1986

Resource Management Act 1991 and amendments

Local Government Act 2002

The Education Act 1989 governs education services in New Zealand and covers both public and private providers of education services.  Key agencies are the Ministry of Education (www.minedu.govt.nz), the New Zealand Qualifications Authority (www.nzqa.govt.nz), and the Education Review Office (www.ero.govt.nz).
Other Acts relevant to education services are:

Private Schools Conditional Integration Act 1975

Industry Training Act 1992

Modern Apprenticeship Training Act 2000

Student Loan Scheme Act 1992

Part 5 Public Finance Act 1989

Immigration Act 1987
Research and innovation policies are developed through the Ministry of Research, Science and Technology (www.morst.govt.nz).  MORST manages the publicly funded part of the RS&T system on behalf of the Government.  It contracts other agencies such as the Foundation for Research, Science and Technology (www.frst.govt.nz) to manage the actual funding of research and innovation projects.


	International Education: The Government is now revising the International Education Framework to guide the development of the sector.  A strategic document is expected to be released in late 2006.


	Licensing and Qualification Requirements of Service Providers


	
	At the higher education level, private and other providers are required to meet certain conditions before they can access government assistance, specifically registration and accreditation with the New Zealand Qualifications Authority (www.nzqa.govt.nz) and provision of proof of company registration or incorporation and financial viability to the Ministry of Education (www.minedu.govt.nz).  The same principle applies in relation to private provision at the schools level (primary and secondary education).  If the Ministry of Education is satisfied that the premises, staffing, equipment, and curriculum of a school of proposed school are suitable, the Ministry can register that school as a private school in New Zealand.

Tertiary Reforms:  Significant changes to the New Zealand tertiary sector were announced in March 2005, involving development of enhanced planning, funding, quality and monitoring regimes to support the provision of high quality and relevant tertiary education. 
The Tertiary Education Strategy (TES) and the Statement of Tertiary Education Priorities (STEP) provide direction for the government’s priorities and outline its expectations of providers. Providers must consider the strategic direction outlined in these documents in their planning processes. New versions of these key documents will be completed by the end of 2006. 

The Tertiary Education Commission (TEC) is responsible for funding all tertiary education. Copies of the TES and STEP as well as other regulatory and funding criteria for providers are available through the TEC (www.tec.govt.nz).

All education providers must be signatories to the Code of Practice for the Pastoral Care of International Students in order to be able to enroll international students.


	Tertiary Reforms: Changes to the quality assurance and monitoring systems are a key component of the government’s tertiary sector reform package. This will include a focus on outcomes, setting common standards and performance indicators, providing information to government and the public, proactive management of risk and developing an on-going system of self-assessment and external validation.  A phased programme of change is proposed, starting with actions that can be in place by 2007.
The current Code of Practice for the Pastoral Care of International Students is being evaluated, with a final report due by the end of August.  Further strengthening of requirements may occur once the evaluation is completed.  


	Foreign Entry


	Education services are covered by the Trans-Pacific Strategic Economic Partnership Agreement (Trans-Pacific SEP, also known as P4 Agreement).  For further details, see the chapter on RTAs/FTAs.

	Screening of foreign investment in New Zealand is restricted to a few critical areas that are defined as sensitive within the Overseas Investment Act 2005.  Investments in sensitive New Zealand assets are subject to the provisions of both the Overseas Investment Act 2005 and the Overseas Investment Regulations 2005.
There are no additional regulatory requirements for foreign entry into the education sector.  Foreign providers of education in New Zealand must meet the same requirements as New Zealand providers.

The Government makes public funding available for research.  In principle, research from overseas agencies may be funded where this maximizes the concept of benefit to New Zealand.  For further details, visit www.morst.govt.nz or www.frst.govt.nz. 


	

	Discriminatory Treatment/

MFN


	
	With the exception of measures indicated in the horizontal section of New Zealand's GATS schedule (which may be more favorable in practice), there are no provisions which discriminate between domestic and foreign suppliers for private education.

 

New Zealand has a special relationship with Australia, through the Australia-New Zealand Closer Economic Relations Trade Agreement entered into in 1983.  This is based on a comprehensive set of trade and economic arrangements, collectively known as CER, which underpin substantial flows of merchandise trade, services, investment, labour and visitors between the two countries.

Australian students resident in New Zealand (Mode of Supply: Consumption Abroad) are treated as domestic students at both the schools and higher education levels, for the purpose of accessing Government subsidized education services.


	


